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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – MARCH 25, 2010

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if anyone has a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we will not be interrupted. And also when speaking, please speak directly into the microphone because it is being recorded. And I'd also like to mention out that all Members of the Board have visited all of the sites that are under consideration this evening. Roll call please. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY









DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ALSO PRESENT: 
BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, FIRE INSPECTOR 

(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 25, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:04 PM) 

JOSHUA COX


SOUTH DIX AVENUE, NBGH






(72-6-14.2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area, lot depth, front yard setback, rear yard setback, lot building coverage and lot surface coverage to build a new single-family residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening Joshua Cox.                

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, March 16th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday March 17th. There were thirty registered letters, thirty were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Cox: My name is Robert Cox and I'm representing Joshua Cox. We're looking for variances for front and rear yard setbacks, lot area, lot depth, surface coverage and building coverage. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, you are going to have to hold that a little closer or you could take that microphone off the stand.

Mr. Cox: Is that better?

Mr. McKelvey: Take it right off.

Ms. Gennarelli: You can take it right off if you'd like or make it higher. 

Mr. Cox: The reason we're asking for variances is because the lot doesn't conform to the present Building Code and a couple of things I just want to mention as far as a couple of the variances we're asking for. Joshua also owns a lot right behind which is in the City of Newburgh which is Lot 5-1-9.2 and if you include that lot onto the Town property it does give you a total of 15,206 feet and therefore that is right behind where the rear setback would be asked. The rear setback would meet the requirements then. As far as the front setback, we're just conforming to the other houses on that street, which are all either that close or closer to the road. As far as building coverage, that lot is in the flood zone so the house is going to be built according to flood zone specs and therefore we need some more square footage because utilities couldn't be in the basement. They had to be up on the first floor in order to meet the requirements of being above a certain level for flood zone. Again with the surface area, go back to the lot he owns and also he's in the process of purchasing the other small lot which is 5-1-8 in the City of Newburgh which will add approximately another 350 sq.ft. to the total footage to the property even though it’s a City lot if you combine the two, which are on the same deed with the 5-1-9.2, is on the same deed now.   

Mr. McKelvey: You had the same problem when he built the other house.

Mr. Cox: Yes, there was a house next door that he built and we had the same type situation. Because of everything that the Zoning changed over the years back then it was 30-foot wide box so I believe that most of the stuff if you include the City lots that he owns behind the property everything is going to be pretty close or meet the standards for what the Code is now. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I have some thing things here. On your map it doesn't show me where the one hundred year floodplain is on this property and your streams edge shows a contour line of 224 and the backyard only five feet higher than that. Now I know that that whole neighborhood down there gets flooded all the time. Do you have a contour number for that floodplain for the hundred-year flood? We don't have it our package. 

No audible response.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, do you have anything on file on that? The hundred-year floodplain on this property, you know how Taft gets flooded all the time. We have a contour line here at the streams edge of 224 and the property at 230, that's only six feet.

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Town of Newburgh, to answer your question Ron the maps we have on file are the newly plotted FEMA maps which replaced the old Floodplain panels. Now they've come out with new maps, I believe July of 2009 they were put into existence. That's what we have on file.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a floodplain elevation noted on that? 

Mr. Cox: I have the contour elevation surfaces.

Mr. Hughes: So here's your floodplain at 232 and your yards only at 230, that means you're going to be under two feet of water.

Mr. Cox: Well no…

Ms. Drake: Use the microphone.

Mr. Cox: …because according to…we checked with the Building Department.

Ms. Drake: Use the microphone.

Chairperson Cardone: Use the microphone.

Mr. Cox: We checked with the Building Department as far as the elevation what the foundation had to be with the floodgates and we submitted it, engineered for the floodgates that we need to do so everything will be Code as far as flood zones as far as FEMA.

Mr. Hughes: You said that earlier but you didn't address my statement here about the elevation on this thing that this clearly shows the hundred-year Floodplain at 232.

Mr. Cox: Right. So…

Mr. Hughes: The copy of the map that you show us shows the backyard at 230 to 231…

Mr. Cox: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …232 in the middle of the house. Are you planning on building this house under water? Something doesn't add up here.  

Mr. Cox: According to the Floodplain you have to build the first floor above the…  

Mr. Hughes: I know about the…

Mr. Cox: So how am I doing it…? 

Mr. Hughes: I know about the rules and regulations. I'm talking about a little common sense here. If the floodplain is a t 232 and your yard is at 231 you're under water.

Mr. Cox: The yard is.

Mr. Hughes: Everything…

Mr. Cox: Not the house.

Mr. Hughes: …the house is in the yard isn't it? Maybe I'm missing something here. Explain to me.

Mr. Cox: We're building it as far as what the rules and regulations are as far as…

Mr. Hughes: You said that already.

Mr. Cox: You can build in a flood zone.

Mr. Hughes: I understand you can build in a flood zone. Well, I said it twice already guess you didn't get it.

Mr. Cox: To answer your question, if we had, if we had a hundred-year floodplain level of the water yes, the yard would be under water, the backyard. 

Mr. Hughes: And last week, how was it?

Mr. Cox: It was fine.

Mr. Hughes: It was? Because I was over there and it didn't look too good to me that's why I thought I was in the wrong spot.

Mr. Cox: You were at the property? You saw water on the property?

Mr. Hughes: I did. In fact, it was so confusing I went back to the Town's Assessor's Office and spent a great deal of time to make sure I was at the right place. I got all the maps and all the…there were so many transfers and Cox and this and that going back and forth I wasn't sure I had the right three lots that were circled on this.

Mr. Cox: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: And I went back there to make sure I was in the right spot so I'm not singling something out. It was damp there and I thought this can't be the place they're going to intend to build a building but now you're telling me that's where it is. You're familiar with those figures of 231 and the floodplain?

Mr. Cox: Yep. (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so maybe I'm missing something. I have some other things too. You've got the Town of Newburgh on one side and the City of Newburgh on the other and the stream is the dividing line and you've got…

Mr. Cox: The stream isn't the dividing line. The City lot is actually on the Town side…

Mr. Hughes: I was going to finish up here. Is that all right?

Mr. Cox: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. It shows on your map that there's an easement and a right of way over the top, which you've shown as building line. You can't build on that either which really deducts an offsetting penalty from the amount of footage that you have and so you're at it about 11,000 feet and supposed to have 12,500. There's water and sewer on that street?

Chairperson Cardone: Please turn off the cell phone. Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you have an ejector system and some kind of thing that's going to be able to do that when this thing floods that you're not going to contaminate the neighborhood with septic? 

Mr. Cox: It's got water and sewer.  

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, but how are you going to get from the house to the sewer in the floodplain? Is it coming out the front of the house into the…?

Mr. Cox: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. and you're going to have Town water there as well?

Mr. Cox: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: All right, so then you're aware of this easement that I'm talking about? Its ten feet wide and…

Mr. Cox: For the pipe, yes, that's right between the property lines. Only half the easement is on that property.

Mr. Hughes: So ten foot of it's on your property and ten foot is on the other?  

Mr. Cox: I believe it's only a ten-foot right of way.

Mr. Hughes: All together? Because that wasn't real clear either. I'm only going by what your diagram shows me.

Mr. Cox: I believe it's five and five actually.

Mr. Hughes: And it looks like, I don't know, it doesn't appear to be. 

(Inaudible) Mr. Cox approached the Board.

Ms. Gennarelli: Mr. Cox, please take that microphone off so hold it while you're walking over there. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so now you're saying that you're in the process of buying this tax lot from Hutto which is going to give you 300-feet and you also own 5-1-.92 or 9.2?

Mr. Cox: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. That easement covers most of that tax lot as you see in this corner unless I have an incorrect drawing that if your fit in ten foot wide it goes right through that whole section of that tax map…

Mr. Cox: On the City lot. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah and then there's another City lot in here or just one City lot?

Mr. Cox: There's one City lot, this is the other one that you're referring to.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Cox: 5-1-8.

Mr. Hughes: All right, so then the composite combined lots of this…are these guys all together? Is that the one?

Mr. Cox: It's…

Mr. Hughes: Because now they've got a new number on it. 

Mr. Cox: Right, its 14.2.

Mr. Hughes: All right. So then you have…

Mr. Cox: That's these…

Mr. Hughes: From here to here?

Mr. Cox: Right.

Mr. Hughes: That doesn't add up to…

Mr. Cox: It's 120 foot (inaudible) 

Mr. Hughes: So answer me one more question here.

Mr. Cox: And as far as you're getting at is to subtract that off you couldn't build on there anyway.

Mr. Hughes: You can't build on any of that easement.

Mr. Cox: Right and that, in the City.

Mr. Hughes: Or in the Town.

Mr. Cox: Right.

Mr. Hughes: That easement is for both of those Municipalities to be able to get in and out of there now is this the hundred year floodplain at 232? Because that's what it shows on the map you showed me. 

Mr. Cox: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I don't know. Jerry? What do you do with something like that? The floodplain is right in middle of the house on this diagram and right on that line.

Mr. Canfield: The Building Department has to review the plans and finished floor, the lowest finished floor elevation to be in compliance with the rules to build in a flood zone. O.K.? The map you're speaking of I don't have here. I only have a plot with a topo on it but it doesn't have the hundred-year flood zone depicted. So in any event, that's a irrelevant point. The point is is that the Building Department has jurisdiction on to pass or deny the Building Permit application based on the engineering drawings submitted. If there is any disturbance within the flood way of course, then there is a Floodplain Permit required which also requires engineering and certified elevations and something this close I'm sure the Building Department will require engineer certifications to verify the elevations that are depicted.

Mr. Hughes: So that being that 50% of the house is in that floodplain there would certainly have to be Permits…

Mr. Canfield: Absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: …for the footings and…

Mr. Canfield: That's correct. Now keep in mind that even though the footprint is in the floodplain the regulations start at two feet above the floodplain for the lowest finished elevation. Therefore that means the basement floor can be in the floodplain. There is construction practices that have to be adhered to encompass subjection to flood damage. There's many ways that that could be accomplished however that is also up to an engineer, a design professional to present to the Building Department that it complies. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering that. Now one other thing, if you'll look at this floodplain on that Mr. Cox has with him, if it's the same one that shows on this topo line here it goes right through the middle of the house; it basically cuts it right in half on the diagonal. Is that the same thing you have on that one?

Mr. Canfield: Well this plot has…

Mr. Hughes: 232 is the elevation.

Mr. Canfield: This plot delineates the base flood elevation at 232 however it does not have the footprint of the house there.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. But take a look…

Mr. Canfield: Approximation? Yes, O.K. but exactly where it comes through the house I don't know. But without seeing actual architect stamped drawing to see where the lowest finished floor elevation is it's an open-ended question. I can't answer you whether it complies or not. 

Mr. Hughes: Well one of my concerns is if you have the easement here and its really cut down on where you can have the building envelope and with that floodplain there I'm a little concerned about approving something like that. I just wanted to get as much information as I could. All right. Thank you for answering those questions. Thank you.

Mr. Canfield: Just one comment also and perhaps counsel can chime in but in the past we've allowed easements for lot area although they may not buildable areas, in the calculations for lot area they are allowable. 

Mr. Donovan: I'm not aware of that. You mean there's no deduct for an easement that encumbers a piece of property in terms of the lot area?

Mr. Canfield: No we haven't deducted it. 

Mr. Donovan: No there is nothing in the Code that speaks to that issue so…

Mr. Hughes: Unless it’s a Central Hudson aerial and then you can't do anything under there. You can't deduct it or you can't build on it.

Mr. Donovan: Well I think that issue in terms of lot size…

Mr. Hughes: This is a different thing, this is water, this is underground it’s a drainage easement.

Mr. Donovan: Well I think we're talking apples and oranges, the issue is in calculating the lot size you don't deduct.

Mr. Hughes: No, you can use that here. You can use the footage here. 

Mr. Donovan: You can use it when there is overhead as well.

Mr. Hughes: You can't build on it.

Mr. Donovan: It doesn't mean…we're talking two different things. You may not be able to put a structure underneath it but in terms of calculating the lot area if it is 12,000 or 15,000. 

Mr. Hughes: So you're what 2,000 sq. ft. deficient on your lot area even with all of the other things together?

Mr. Cox: With the other lot do you mean?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Cox: No.

Mr. Hughes: I have figures here that say 10,281.

Mr. Cox: That's just the Town properties.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Then so what is your total?

Mr. Cox: The total when you take lot 5-1-9.2 it comes to 13,206, which is on the survey map. 

Mr. Hughes: What this one has on it is different this says 10,182.

Mr. Cox: That's because that's just with the Town. That's a plot plan for the Town.

Mr. Hughes: All right. So 350…

Mr. Cox: Right here the total area with all the lots, 13,206 and like I said this other lot 5-1-8 he is in the process of trying to purchase from Mr. Hutto. They are trying to work out an agreement and that is approximately another 350 feet. It wasn't calculated exactly. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I was going by this that's why I said…it didn't add up.

Mr. Cox: Right. That one is for the Town.

Mr. Hughes: All right so you're saying you have the actual square footage for the lot size all together. But you don't have the depth and you don't have the front yard and you don't have the rear yard because of the stream or because of the…?

Mr. Cox: Again, if you add on the City lot.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, so then this is with just the Town? 

Mr. Cox: Right. All those numbers are just with the Town. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Ms. Drake: So what would the lot depth be with the City property? 

Mr. Hughes: 27 feet more. It gives you another 30 feet behind that with 181 gives you…

Mr. Cox: This is 99 O.K.? And then you've got 12 feet. 

Mr. Hughes: 12 feet. So you've got about 107 feet, 115 feet somewhere in there as it goes back.

Ms. Eaton: When you were here 7 years ago for the other lot did you construct the house on that lot?

Mr. Cox: On which lot?

Ms. Eaton: The lot you were here for in 2003.

Chairperson Cardone: 12.3.

Mr. Cox: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: O.K. And you lived in that? Someone lived in that? 

Mr. Cox: My son lived in that. Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Is that a spec house?

Mr. Cox: No.

Mr. Hughes: This house?

Mr. Cox: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: That's all I have. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Maher: Just to clear up actually, if you take into account the City lot, then your lot surface coverage becomes 3900 sq. ft. allowable and you're at 3100 so basically it becomes a mute point there. Well 3100 is proposed so basically there is no variance needed for that if you take into account the City area per se? Correct?

Mr. Cox: Right.

Mr. Maher: O.K. And the same thing on lot building coverage; lot building coverage goes from 1527 allowed technically to 1870 with the extra property in the City so a variance, we're up to 27% would be needed if that was taken into account and all made one lot?

Mr. Cox: Right.

Mr. Maher: O.K. I'm clear.

Mr. Hughes: See what made your figures look way overboard not counting in the City's footages you have a 48% request past and that's through the roof.

Mr. Cox: Yeah, I understand but we couldn't put that down because the Town as far as the maps that we submitted and that's why we were coming here and explaining what the situation is at this point. 

Ms. Drake: So with the City property what is your rear yard? Is it over the 40-foot required with the City property?

Mr. Hughes: It wouldn't...it might make it. It's getting close.

Mr. Cox: Yeah, it's pretty close. 

Mr. Maher: You've got 35 and 27 foot of house so it s 35, 55, 62, the lot is about 110 feet there?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Maher: So you've got roughly 48 foot or so of rear yard. The requirement is 40, yeah.

Mr. Cox: 40, O.K.

Mr. Maher: So, in essence if it was able to be condensed into one lot you'd eliminate your lot area variance completely. Your lot depth would still be a small issue there. Front yard would go, well front yard remains, rear yard goes away, lot building coverage becomes about 27% and the lot surface is gone, no variance at all there. So, O.K. I'm clear now.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for clarifying all that because they looked way over here.

Mr. Cox: No, I (inaudible) 

Mr. Hughes: And the figures on the one map weren't the same as the other and I needed to know which one is the real numbers. 

Mr. Manley: There is still one other question and that is with regard to the property for Lots 11, 12 and 13 that were done back in 2003, it was indicated that the applicant was purchasing the additional I guess 6200 sq. ft. that were needed at the rear of the parcel from the City of Newburgh. Was that done, was that completed back in '03?

Mr. Cox: The City lot behind there? 

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Cox: Yes. And then, actually yes, that was done and then he purchased these…he did a lot line change to make that in line with the existing lot with the house on it now. 

Mr. Manley: O.K. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. Maher: I'll make it.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes





          Michael Maher: Yes

          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:25 PM)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 25, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 9:47 PM) 



JOSHUA COX


SOUTH DIX AVENUE, NBGH






(72-6-14.2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area, lot depth, front yard setback, rear yard setback, lot building coverage and lot surface coverage to build a new single-family residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting.  On the application of Joshua Cox on South Dix Avenue seeking area variances for the lot area, lot depth, front yard setback, rear yard setback, lot building coverage and lot surface coverage to build a new single-family residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA and the report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think he is doing the same thing he did with the house next door. He's going to have to adhere to the floodplain.

Ms. Eaton: He seems to understand that.

Mr. Donovan: And also I should point out that the a…there is property that he owns that's in the City if taken into account would eliminate or reduce all the variances.

Mr. Manley: The property is landlocked as well its got the stream that runs behind it, correct, the City property so…

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve. 

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Michael Maher: Yes

 

          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

 (Time Noted – 9:49 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MARCH 25, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:25 PM) 



MARA & DANTE AVON

280 MOUNTAIN VIEW AVENUE, WALLKILL






(5-1-4.2) R/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the rear yard setback, the maximum allowed lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence.    

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Mara and Dante Avon.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, March 16th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday March 17th. The applicant sent out fifteen registered letters, eleven were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Maher: Madam Chair, I have a professional relationship with their contractor so I am going to step away. 

Chairperson Cardone: You may begin.

Ms. Avon: We are seeking an area variance to rebuild our rear deck.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you just state your name and address for the record? 

Ms. Gennarelli: And could you just tip the microphone up a little bit and get closer. Thanks we're recording this.

Ms. Avon: Oh, O.K.

Ms. Avon: My name is Mara Avon at 280 Mountain View Avenue, Wallkill, NY 12589.

Mr. Avon: Dante Avon, 280 Mountain View Avenue, Wallkill, NY 12589.

Chairperson Cardone: You're increasing the size of the deck from 12 x 12 to 12 x 24, correct?

Ms. Avon: Yes that is correct.

Ms. Drake: So you're not increasing the rear yard setback from what was currently there? You're staying 12 feet from the house and that's what it was?

Ms. Avon: That's correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I've got a couple of questions.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I've got the same thing going on here. You're supposed to be 200 feet from the reservoir with this thing aren't you? This is an R/R district. Jerry? 

No response.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry?

No response.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry? 

Mr. Canfield: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: R/R. I didn't know if you heard me or not.

Mr. Donovan: He's trying to ignore you but it didn't work.

Mr. Hughes: That's the safe thing to do. And is your lot 140 feet deep as it shows here or is something…? This map doesn't add up to the Tax Assessor's map.

Mr. Perado: Inaudible.

Mr. Hughes: It is 140 feet from the front of the yard to the back of the yard?

Ms. Gennarelli: You have to use the microphone and introduce yourself.

Mr. Perado: I'm Michael Perado from ProStruction. We're the builder that's going to build the deck. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Ms. Gennarelli: Mike could you just repeat that answer that you just said? We're recording this. You said it was what 150?

Mr. Perado: It's 140 deep.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: It shows here, Jerry, on the application R/R. And I think it is.

Mr. Perado: It is R & R, that's what it's showing on the application at least.  

Mr. Hughes: See that's one of my concerns its backed up to the reservoir there and that's that R/R district requires I think 100 feet minimum or two hundred feet minimum…I misspoke.

Mr. Perado: The deck that they have was previously there before they actually bought the house. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes. We were out to look at it. That's what confused me too. I was in the wrong yard. 

Mr. Perado: And if I may? The house itself is a non-conforming to the rear yard setback to begin with. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: And you're testimony is you are not increasing.

Mr. Perado: No we're not increasing.

Mr. Donovan: The rear yard setback.

Mr. Perado: Right that is correct. We're keeping it in line with the 12 foot deck that's previously there.

Mr. Hughes: That's going to be parallel with the house?

Mr. Perado: Correct. We're going parallel. Correct.

Mr. Manley: How many acres is the property?

Mr. Avon: .65. 

Mr. Hughes: A little over a half.

Mr. Donovan: And Ron, to your recollection is the requirement of the distance from the reservoir in the Town Zoning…

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: …Ordinance? Did you find it Jerry? 

Mr. Canfield: If I may?

Mr. Donovan: Yes you may.

Mr. Canfield: I think what Ron is referring to is 185-22-C Critical environmental areas, which specifically deals with Chadwick Lake critical area of environmental concern. I'm just reading through it now. I believe that's what you're referring to?

Mr. Hughes: That's one of the points, yeah. You're supposed to have a lot width of at least of 200 feet, a lot depth of 300 feet. If I can refer to page 185 attachment 5-1, revised 2-1-09 and I think it stayed consistent from the previous worksheets. 

Mr. Avon: May I ask a question? So you're saying it’s a more non-conforming now?  

Mr. Hughes: Well what's there you have to live with and we do too to a certain degree but we have to be cautious about what we allow.

Mr. Avon: Understood.

Mr. Hughes: You know, because if we open the door to you then everybody up the street says well why can't we? Give me a minute here maybe I can…

Mr. Manley: 185-22-C (1) (a) No land development activity or accessory use of any kind that involves the construction of impervious surfaces, sewage treatment or discharge of effluent shall occur within 200 feet of the shoreline of Chadwick Lake. Is that what you're…?

Mr. Hughes: That's one of them. Yes. That Chapter is entitled Environmentally sensitive areas, which this is.

Mr. Donovan: Do we demonstrate how far…do we demonstrate how far they are?

Mr. Manley: I think they're farther than 200 feet. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I think they are. Do you know what the distance from the back edge of your lot to the lake is? Is it as long as a football field?

Mr. Avon: Yeah, it's quite far. 

Mr. Hughes: I've seen it but I didn't have anything to go by out there you know.

Mr. Avon: It's more than 200 feet. I can't be exact but…

Mr. Hughes: We've got the ruler and the magic television here. 

Chairperson Cardone: I just want to clear up one thing. One page your name is listed as Maria and on the other one its Mara.

Ms. Avon: It's Mara. 

Chairperson Cardone: It is M-A-R-A?    

Ms. Avon: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you.

Ms. Avon: You're welcome.  

Mr. Hughes: Thank you. That answers a lot of questions.

Mr. Avon: Does it?

Mr. Hughes: Yes. I have nothing else. Thank you for answering those questions Jerry.

Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Manley: Just one for Mr. Donovan. It also said in here that any proposed construction or land management activity within the critical lake, the Chadwick Lake critical area of environmental concern shall be required to submit a plan for approval by the Planning Board. 

Mr. Hughes: But this is not going to be constructed in the critical area of 200-feet.

Mr. Donovan: What, Jim, tell me what subdivision, are you still looking at A? 

Mr. Manley: 185-22-C (1)… 

Mr. Donovan: C (1) (a)?

Mr. Manley: C (1) (c).

Mr. Hughes: C (1) (c)?

Mr. Donovan: Well we need to define the Chadwick Lake critical area of environmental concern. Do we have an overlay map that it's 200 feet, Jerry? Because there's no…

Mr. Hughes: You can see by the overhead it is.

Mr. Canfield: The requirement is 200-feet.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah from the edge of the shore.  

Mr. Canfield: What we don't know, I think, at this time other than what the applicant's testimony is is that they're beyond the 200-feet from the lake. I would recommend that the Board see that delineation that it is over 200-feet. 

Mr. Donovan: Well I think we're looking at an aerial that seems to indicate that. But Jim is what is the Chadwick Lake critical area of environmental concern? Or what's the boundaries of that?

Mr. Manley: It's not the 200-feet…

Mr. Donovan: Perhaps not, sure, because it says no land development activity etc. shall occur within the shoreline of Chadwick Lake. So it would seem certainly to indicate that the Chadwick Lake critical area of environmental concern is a different or a larger area and I can only presume that we have a…there is an overlay map someplace that I don't have in my possession. 

Mr. Manley: I just want to make sure that whatever decision we make here we're not making a decision in and impeding on another board's purview.

Mr. Donovan: You look like you have the answer Jerry, so go ahead.

Mr. Canfield: I think I might be able to put you in the direction then, 185-3 in the definitions. The definition of the Critical Area of Environmental Concern is spelled out. Although they do not mention a delineation or a footage such as the 185-22 does but it does give you an overview of what the intent is I believe.  

Mr. Hughes: I know it includes all the homes on Mountain View and to the lake and around the north part of the lake and all of what is that…? 32 that goes out to Plattekill? But I don't know where it stops on the bottom end of it.

Mr. Donovan: I think if you look at the definition it ends by saying indicated on the… the definition of Critical Area of Environmental Concerns it ends by saying as indicated on the Zoning Map which is part of this chapter. So I would think that would indicate that there is an overlay. I don't happen to have a Zoning Map.

Ms. Gennarelli: Dave, I have this.

Mr. Hughes: That's the one.

Mr. Donovan and the Board Members examined the Zoning Map. 

Mr. Donovan: The overlay is not shown on that map. My suggestion is, in terms of your deliberations, you could impose a condition that indicates to the extent that anything further is required if its within that Critical Environmental Area then it has to conform to those regulations. I don't think we are going to resolve this issue tonight and in fact, if that's the Zoning Map it is supposed to be indicated on that map and its not.

Mr. Manley: There may be something in the Master Plan that defines it better. That is the only other spot. I remember seeing a map with something on it. I just don't recall where.

Mr. Avon: May I say something please? We're not encroaching any further into this zoning than the original deck that was there. I just want to make that clear. You know we're just going out the 12-feet that the original deck did. There is a deck standing right now. That's what we propose to knock down.

Mr. Donovan: And we're not going any close to…?

Mr. Avon: That is correct.

Mr. Donovan: You are going to use that microphone or Betty is going to get really upset.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you. Just take the mic off of that and hold it up. Thank.

Mr. Avon: We're not going any closer, encroaching any closer to the reservoir that was already there.

Mr. McKelvey: You're going right straight across the face of the house.

Mr. Avon: That is absolutely correct. There is 12-feet that's there now. There's a deck that's standing there. There's been a deck standing there for the last 40 years and we just propose to go parallel with that deck to the side yard. I do have pictures if you would like to see, if that would help matters.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any questions or comments from the public? Anything else from the Board? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. Manley: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes





          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Avon: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:40 PM)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 25, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 9:49 PM) 



MARA & DANTE AVON

280 MOUNTAIN VIEW AVENUE, WALLKILL






(5-1-4.2) R/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the rear yard setback, the maximum allowed lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence.    

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Mara and Dante Avon of 280 Mountain View Avenue, Wallkill, seeking area variances for the rear yard setback, the maximum allowed lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: Being it determined that they are more than two hundred foot from the reservoir and they're not increasing the degree of non-conformity, they are staying the 12-foot that's there I make a motion to approve the application.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes





          Michael Maher: Abstain

          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

 (Time Noted – 9:50 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MARCH 25, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:40 PM) 



GASLAND PETROLEUM INC./HUDSON 
ROUTE 9W/ROBINSON AVENUE & 

       VALLEY AUTO APPRAISERS INC.    NORTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH







(84-1-1.12, 1.2, 2) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation and an area variance for the front yards setback (s) to build a convenience store and gas station.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant, held open from the January meeting, Gasland Petroleum. And before we start we have the Orange County Department of Planning recommendation, which is Local Determination.

Mr. Lapine: Good evening my name is Christopher Lapine I'm with Chazen Company representing the applicant this evening and with Jon Adams the attorney for the applicant with me as well. We were before the Board in January 28th at which time the Public Hearing for this project remained open (inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Chris, could you take the mic off and hold it up a little closer please. Thanks. It's not picking up. 

Mr. Lapine: Not a problem. The thirty-day period had not elapsed from the time that the Orange County Planning was forwarded our plans and variance request. Since then we have taken a look at a couple of the issues that were raised at the last Board meeting. Specifically we've been in communication over the last month and a half with the City of Newburgh as it relates to the Route 9W improvements. We have been forwarding plans back and forth, our plans and their improvements. I actually got a response today from the City of Newburgh engineer indicating that the City of Newburgh did not see a problem with the integration of our improvements into the City of Newburgh's improvements along 9W. They are actually asking for a meeting of both the applicant and the City of Newburgh in the near future should the project move back to the Planning Board. The other issue that was raised was headlights and how they'd impact the neighbors. If you recall at the last meeting, we agreed to extend the proposed 6 ft high fence all the way around to the rear of the site. We also took a drive out here because there was some concern about the neighbor immediately south of our access drive along North Plank Road. What we found is they have an existing line of shrubs along North Plank Road in addition, this…this side of their house is actually the garage. There's no windows on that side of their house so it's our opinion that they're not going to be impacted by the headlights as they're egressing from our drive along North Plank Road. (Inaudible) up to the Board has any questions.

Chairperson Cardone: Questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Am I to presume that you are still sticking to your guns that you're going to use the places at the pumps as parking spaces? 

Mr. Lapine: It's been my understanding and my history here in the Town of Newburgh that parking at the pumps counts towards parking spaces when you're utilizing a convenience store and that a also serves as a gasoline filling station.

Mr. Hughes: And of all the stuff that we discussed, that's the only thing that you had to say about the headlights on the side of that building?

Mr. Lapine: Well I'm assuming that you're can't focus be to the a parking.

Mr. Hughes: Well, yeah I'm not so concerned about it, I know that he knows what he's looking at but of all the stuff that we discussed the last time you guys were here that's all you came up with?

Mr. Lapine: Yes. There was also some comments from the Chairman that indicated a number of the comments were a matter of a, if I recall from the meeting minutes, were a matter of Planning Board review that would be covered at the Planning Board level. So we focused on those three.

Mr. Adams: I would also like to note that we indicated to you that we did not believe the…

Ms. Gennarelli: Jon, Jon, excuse me…

Mr. Adams: My name is Jon Adams.

Ms. Gennarelli: I'm sorry, could you just hold the microphone because it's not picking up. Thank you.

Mr. Adams: A…

Ms. Gennarelli: That's better.

Mr. Adams: When the parking issue came before the Board at the last meeting we also noted we didn't believe that that issue was an issue for this Board's consideration as that issue was not raised in a review of the plans by the Code Enforcement Officer. Absent his finding of a deficiency as to parking there was no need to seek a variance or to question the necessity of additional parking spaces. That issues was passed on, that review level implicitly it was passed upon satisfactorily and as a result the parking issue is not a issue that we believe is technically before this Board. 

Mr. Donovan: And if you recall our discussion from last month because we certainly did take some time on that issue and I did take some time to read the minutes and we get to the issue of what is our jurisdiction and this matter is on appeal to us with a referral from the Planning Board. The Planning Board referred this matter to us for consideration of a front yard variance from North Plank Road the building setback and a front yard variance from Route 9W relative to the canopy setback. Now I understand how difficult it is when there's so many other issues that seem to jump out at you and then do jump out at you that you wish to comment on and have your opinion, action taken with regard to your opinion I should say. The reality is those are the two issues that are in front of this Board as we are a Board of appellate jurisdiction. 

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I have some. Mr. Adams, could you tell me how many variances you're here for and what they include?

Mr. Lapine: We're here this evening for two front yard variances, one along Route 9W and one along North Plank Road. 

Mr. Hughes: And that's the only variances you're here for tonight? 

Mr. Lapine: Yes and an interpretation as well.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. that's what I was looking for and the matter of the interpretation is? 

Mr. Adams: Our interpretation of the Zoning Law and I cited the Section to at the last meeting, it was 185-18- Charlie that is C - 1 that under your non-conforming provisions of the Zoning Law where we are enlarging the building and reconstructing a building and we're not increasing any non-conformity and we're not here, we're decreasing the non-conformity a you are permitted to do that as a matter of right without the necessity of a variance. Obviously we've made both type of applications to you, to cover both ways but it is our interpretation and our of that particular provision that in fact that was inserted for that purpose and that it benefits this particular application because we undertaking one of the activities, enlargement of, which is described…one of the activities described in that subsection is enlargement and that is fundamentally what is happening here. There seems to be implicit in that policy and that section encouraging free development of existing buildings so long as we do not increase the extent of non-conformity and as I said we are not increasing any non-conformity. We are decreasing the non-conformance.

Mr. Hughes: So could it be that it's 19-C-1 not 18-C-1? 

Mr. Adams: 18-19-C-1.

Mr. Hughes: 19? C-1, O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: 185 it would be, the page number. Do we have anything else from the Board?  

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I'd like to bring it to the Board's attention and especially to counsel, 185-19-A-1 - Alterations, displacement, changes and such will tell you more clearly what it is that we're here to identify and interpret tonight. Not the suggestion that the applicant's counsel wanted to…

Mr. Donovan: Well, I mean, the issue of the interpretation is obviously clearly here for the Board's consideration. I'll offer my own two cents if you're inclined to listen to me. I don't think it applies because I think we're taking some existing conditions, especially with regard to the house, we're demolishing those, we're combining tax lots and we're putting up new structures. So I don't think that that was intended to be covered by this provision of the Code. That's my two cents.

Mr. Hughes: Well my perception of what the Law was written for would have intend was that once you knock something down or add another place to it you don't have the same creature.

Mr. Donovan: Well I mean that's what makes the world go around, people have different opinions on matters of interpretation, a I don't think that this provision of the Code was intended to cover what is being done here that that's my opinion but assuming that that's the case that its not intended to cover this then the issue you have are the two variances, 8.2 feet on Route 9W and 22.4 feet on North Plank Road. Those are the variances for the new structures and what the application will indicate to you they're actually while they are clearly non-compliant they are, if you will, less non-compliant with the existing conditions. 

Chairperson Cardone: And would you just state again for the record what the existing conditions are right now? 

Mr. Donovan: To the extent you missed anything in the packet of information that you had delivered to the Board an existing conditions plan…

Mr. Lapine: That's correct.

Mr. Donovan: …which presumably depicts those existing conditions.

Mr. Lapine: Currently its 4.8 feet along Route 9W and 3 ½ feet along North Plank Road. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes?

Mr. Kelson: Thank you Madam Chairman. My name is Todd Kelson. I'm an attorney here in New Windsor. I am representing Jaman Enterprises, which is an adjoining landowner across from 9W. I just like to address a few of the points that were made this evening by counsel and by the engineer. First with regard to parking and the question raised as to whether it's a proper subject to discuss before this Board. Two of the issues that have to be considered in a Zoning in an area variance application of whether there will be an undesirable change in the character or an adverse impact on physical and environmental conditions and if there is not enough parking in an area I think that clearly falls within the purview of this Board. Yes. Not perhaps in the context of do you need twelve spaces or do you need fourteen spaces. That's certainly something I suppose that the Planning Board would address but in a sort of in a holistic way of if there is not enough parking and there's a, you know, a quibbling on a definition, you know, allow pump spaces to count as parking it could certainly have an impact and I think taking into account the other comment, you know, that there's been a statement that there's been either a custom or a practice to allow pump spaces to count when you're talking about a convenience store I think everybody should keep in mind that one of the things they want to do and correct me if I'm mistaken, is they want to put a bank or a banking branch or banking facilities on this property and people who are going in the bank don't leave their car at their run in and run out, they are going in there and they are going to do some business and that certainly will have an impact on how…I guess what's the term, dwell? Is that what you would say? How long they stay on the property? And I think that clearly is something that the Board should take into account. And finally just going back, unfortunately some of the members of the public aren't here this evening the matter was adjourned from last month because of the snow storm, I'd just like to just reemphasize some of the things that Mr. Boles and some of the other people said. And that was, that the neighbors have a concern about the impact of the increased size of this improvement on that neighborhood. That neighborhood in the City of Newburgh, I think its sort of disingenuous to say, you know, that there will be no change in the character or detriment to the neighborhood when there's going to be an increased traffic flow in those little streets back there, Jamison and the other street and to say that there is going to be no adverse or environmental conditions. If there is a enhanced, if there's any amount of increased traffic on those very narrow streets, I'm sure you've all had a chance to look back there, they are really small and it would take very little extra traffic to really have an adverse impact back there. And I think the Board should take that into account very seriously before they grant him…grant the application. The applicant, they could build this improvement without any variances at all if they choose…if they choose to. I mean yes, they'll have to build a smaller, they'll have to tear it down and build something smaller I suppose and they could do that but I don't think that the Board should facilitate the expansion in a very difficult area where obviously it will have a very serious impact on the neighborhood. I thank you.

Mr. Donovan: Can I…if I may, can I ask just a question Todd? If the Planning Board, this is here on referral from the Planning Board, if they don't raise the parking issue, the inference that we draw is that the parking is compliant. So do you believe that we have the jurisdiction under the adverse impact on the character of the neighborhood to to deny the variance even though it appears at least because the Planning Board didn't raise any issue with us that the parking is compliant? 

Mr. Kelson: I think the Planning Board is looking at different kinds of issues. O.K.? And this Board is charged with whether its statutory standard. I mean its very…its very clear, its very straight forward what issues the Board may consider and in…I think in every case its sui generis, it stands on its own. I mean there may be other cases where there might be, I'm just postulating since we're having this…I suppose there might be other cases where there might be a parking deficit of some sort where in this big holistic sense it wouldn't make that much difference but, you know, its my position that in this case it would. So I think but I think that's the Board, I'm certainly not standing here substituting my judgment for the Board but I think it's certainly within the Board's confidence to take a look at that and see. You know in any given case will that issue or any other issue, O.K., that the statute permits them to review, will any other site factor have an impact on those issues, on those statutory criteria that the Board is supposed to take a look at before granting or denying a variance.

Mr. Donovan: Thanks.

Mr. Kelson: Thank you.  

Mr. McKelvey: Jerry, is it a practice to allow parking spaces at the pumps?

Mr. Canfield: The answer to your question is yes. It has been a practice. In the section of the parking standard that we're looking at is 185-13-D-1, which is areas, which may be considered. And the Board may want to take a look at that and also D as in dog, 2, location of parking spaces and I believe that addressed our concern there. 

Mr. Hughes: How many square feet of property do you have combined with the parcel your showing on your present land, sir? 

Mr. Lapine: Approximately 45,000 sq. ft.

Mr. Hughes: So you're at the max there, for a drive-in you've got to have a minimum of 40,000 sq. ft. and now you're asking for twelve of those parking spaces to facilitate the drive-thru which is going to create a hell of a lot more traffic. I mean everything is up to max here. You're trying to put ten pounds of stuff in a five-pound bag. 

Mr. Lapine: My…my parking, I'm looking to add, I'm not looking to use…to utilize my parking beneath the canopies so that I can incorporate a drive-thru. My parking…

Mr. Hughes: No, I didn't suggest that maybe I miss-phrased my wording. You need 40,000 sq. ft. to have a drive-in as a minimum standard. You've got a lot here that's in a very bad intersection. Your traffic flow and we've discussed this. We went thru this in January. Do you recall?

No response.

Mr. Adams: Are you addressing Mr. Lapine or…? 

Mr. Hughes: Yes, he has the floor.

Mr. Adams: I'm just standing here, sir.

Mr. Hughes: Well you're getting confused because the last time I asked Mr. Adams and he (Mr. Lapine) answered so I'm just going along with it, you know, work with me here. You see what I'm saying there's a lot of confusion here. There's that thing that's going round and round, and you're trying to bring cars in and out, you've got a drive-in there, you've got, as I see it, a deficiency of a lot of stuff here that would make that a nice spot to do business. Whether it's our issue, or the Planning issue, my opinion is that somebody missed a lot of stuff here.

Mr. Lapine: With regards to that in deficiency of the business, you know, the applicant has looked at the plan, has studied the plan and believes its current meets his needs in terms of marketing to the establishments he's looking to so with regards to that in terms of deficiency in doing business it meets, it meets the needs of the applicant in terms of doing business.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, I'm very sure of that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Chris, I'm just going to ask you to speak a little louder because its not really picking up.

Mr. Lapine: O.K.

Ms. Gennarelli: You are talking very low. Thank you.

Mr. Adams: Can I make? I'd also like to make two brief observations if I may in response to some of the comments? One, we have to keep in mind that this entire building is going to be one business district and its zoned for commercial use. You're going to have traffic on that roadway consistent with commercial use. Our building does not exceed the coverage requirements and conforms to the coverage requirements. Under the Zoning Law of the Town of Newburgh we have presumptively met the parking requirements because no one has said we haven't. To sit here and speculate on facts unknown to the Board that this parking might not be sufficient would be based upon something that's not in evidence. There's nothing, it would be purely speculative to say that the success of this business be such that the parking for the two businesses proposed on the site would not be sufficient. Therefore I don't believe there's any factual basis for a determination that there would be adverse impacts. Secondly, as I said we have complied with Zoning as it relates to parking. That issue should be in my mind an issue that is no longer, an issue that no longer requires a comment. The other thing that you need to consider is that the variances we're requesting are minor variances for portions of buildings because we have an irregularly shaped lot. Most of the areas, the canopies for which we're seeking variances are actually compliant but because we don't have a rectangular lot but and because the lot lines are at significant angles and the width of the lot varies we need variances. The variances really are a function of the shape of the lot more than anything else. Lastly, to say that because none of these variances that we've asked for are going to generate I'm sorry there is no connection or nexus for the Board to use between the variances that we're requesting and the impacts that some of the speakers have suggested might follow. You would have the same impacts, quite frankly, traffic and so forth, cars coming out on North Plank Road if you had a building that complied for which no variances were required. You're still going to have more traffic because we have a bigger building. We have a bigger building because we have a bigger lot. It's that simple quite frankly.  

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Mr. Kelson: Thank you maam. Just with respect to the comment made by Mr. Adams. I would suggest that if an issue was raised I think the application says, there will be no impact because and then the applicant is given an opportunity to state why. I think a legitimate issue has been raised and I think the burden should fall to the applicant to show how a legitimate, if it’s a question, a legitimate question that's been raised will not have an impact. I don't see any traffic studies. I don't see anything in this application. Its true that, as I said, in another…in another setting its possible that some of these issues might not have an impact but we, you know, my client and others believe that they do and the Board has to look at the project as a whole and determine whether the granting of the variance will increase or decrease or have an, I should say, have an adverse factor, an adverse impact with respect to those factors that the Board has to consider. So I just don't…I just don't agree that for example my client or another similarly situated client or the Board itself has aversion to go to an applicant and say, O.K. we have to go and get a consultant to show why it’s a problem. I think…I think if, you know, a non-spurious, non-specious legitimate issue was raised I think the Board…its within the Board's confidence to say O.K. can you address this issue for us and show us why, you know, give us some demonstrable evidence. The evidence should come from the applicant as to why it would not be a problem and not the other way around.

Mr. Lapine: (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Please speak directly into the microphone.

Mr. Lapine: The attorney is referring to the Sunoco station across the street I believe.

Mr. Kelson: No, I referring to the neighborhood is what I'm referring to. I mean I... 

Mr. Lapine: I though I heard something about your…

Mr. Kelson: Well that's one person I'm speaking, what I'm directing my comments to is the impact on the overall neighborhood. The neighborhood includes the commercial areas across on 9W and I don't know what the impact there is but I'm not speaking to those areas. What I'm speaking to is the impact of this application on the neighborhoods, on Jamison and Crescent and that little stub of North Plank Road back there. Those areas, I think, are greatly impacted, or have the potential to be greatly impacted by this application if this application is approved and that was what I was referring to. 

Mr. Lapine: So the variances that we're…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, please…

Mr. Lapine: The variances that we're requesting this evening from the Board are going to have the impact that you're referring to but I know your clients property across the street is approximately one foot from the right of way line in terms of its canopy and about twenty six feet or twenty seven feet from the building neither of which is compliant with the sixty foot setback from Route 9W. I would…

Mr. Kelson: My client is not here with an application before this Board this evening.

Mr. Lapine: But I would assume that the impacts associated with our project then would be less than the impacts from the existing parcel because the setbacks are greater.

Mr. Kelson: I don't think my client is on trial and I'm not going to answer speculative questions about what my client might or might not do.

Mr. Lapine: Just sharing that with the Board.

Mr. Adams: We could go around in circles on this issue but again I like to suggest to the Board the question is what impact does the building have, the building as proposed and the variances perhaps to a building that didn't need a variance. I submit our position is clear on that. These variances are not substantial. They do not add to the commercial area of the building. The variances do not bring any more cars, any more customers because they are simply related to the canopies and only a portion of the canopies. Again, if you had a compliant building you would have the same traffic impacts. These variances are not inducing any different impacts than a building that complied with the dimensional standards in terms of the setbacks.

Ms. Eaton: How much traffic will the bank generate?

Mr. Adams:  My hearing…(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: You've got to bring that mic with you then.

Ms. Eaton: How much traffic will the bank generate for this site? 

Mr. Lapine: (Inaudible) …get the traffic study off the top of my head.

Ms. Gennarelli: You are not speaking into the microphone.

Mr. Lapine: I don't have the figures. I did not prepare that that was done by a traffic consultant but if you give me an opportunity I'll go and look that up right now for you.

Ms. Eaton: O.K.

Mr. Manley: One of the questions I have is in any variance request is can this be achieved by any other method and one of the questions that I have is why would the applicant come with, if the applicant can make this project without having to request a variance, why would they not when they develop the project just come with a convenience store, with a gas station and boom it fits. They build it but now it seems like they want an additional anchor to be a part of this complex here. 

Mr. Adams: And that anchor doesn't again create a density greater permitted by zoning. The answer to your question is basically and I've discussed that with Mr. Lapine and I'm going to let him address it because it's really an engineering question. It relates to topography isles and so forth but it’s a good question and we're prepared to address it but I have to, its basically an engineering factor rather than a legal issue and he will address that when he returns to the a lectern.  

Mr. Lapine: The question regarding the bank trips are approximately seventeen vehicle trip ends during the peak hour.

Mr. Manley: What do you define as peak hour?

Mr. Lapine: For this space the a…this is the weekday AM and, oh I'm sorry, the weekday PM peak hour and they use…they do not list the peak hour just the time of the day, just says peak hour in the report.

Ms. Eaton: Is this a full service bank or just a check cashing facility?

Mr. Lapine: It's a satellite bank similar to what you see in like a Stop and Shop or a a Price Chopper, a scaled down version.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you.  

Mr. Manley: Most Price Choppers and Stop and Shops don't have drive-thrus though.

Mr. Lapine: You are correct.

Mr. Hughes: I'd feel more comfortable if we could make a directive to the Planning Board noting the things that I feel have been overlooked in this project. I…I just don't feel comfortable in it. If I was the attorney for the applicant and thought I could come in and ask for two minor variances and hope that nobody is looking at all the rest of the stuff here I'd be doing the same thing. I'm just not satisfied with the questions that were asked. I'm not satisfied by the way they were answered. I don't think the traffic study is complete. And I don't buy any of it. 

Mr. Adams: If the Board deems the traffic study to be pertinent we will…

Mr. Hughes: Well that's only one of the things I mentioned.

Mr. Adams: I understand that but that requires a consultant. I know the comments we've had about the traffic tonight are very general and loose. Normally when you have traffic issues you have a traffic consultant. We do have traffic consultants at our disposal and we're happy to have one of them address that issue.

Mr. Hughes: Well it may not even get to that point. I would like to a…

Mr. Adams: I was going to ask for an opportunity to do that.

Mr. Donovan: Well if I can, to be fair to Mr. Adams, I mean, he did contact me after the last meeting because this issue of traffic was raised and he did ask me, what is the Board looking for with regard to traffic? And I have to tell you that I'm very hesitant to answer that question. Only because I then say to him, the Board wants "X", he comes with "X" this is what your counsel asks for and you say that's not what we authorized him to do.

Mr. Hughes: Well that's why I'm suggesting…

Mr. Donovan: So, I mean, that's the difficult position that that I'm in. I don't want to speak for all seven of you…outside of the meeting but I do want to be fair to Mr. Adams and the engineering consultant. I was asked that question and I refused to answer it.  

Mr. Hughes: Yes. Well I think that we all need to be a little bit better informed on this entire thing here, the canopy location being considered, the edge, the parking and a myriad of other things. When someone tells me, I believe or we believe, and can't tell me the Section of the Law or the Section of the Zoning its hard for me to believe. If someone said well, it's Section 185-19-B-1 blah, blah, blah, that's one thing. But when the applicant says to me well we believe that there won't be a problem…what do I believe? I want to see it. I'm not convinced that this is going to be a safe project. There is a gas station on the opposite corner in two places. There's traffic snarls there. There's a very quiet neighborhood and I believe that there are more than just casual impacts on this project. I recommend that we hold the Hearing open on this thing and get some more information. And get a letter over to our Town Counsel and the Planning Board to compare some notes.

Mr. Donovan: Well to be fair then I… and I don't know if that's the inclination of the majority of the Board but if it is I'd ask for the benefit of the applicant you be specific.

Mr. Hughes: Oh yes.

Mr. Donovan: As to exactly what you want.

Mr. Hughes: There will be a list.

Mr. Donovan: Well there needs to be a list otherwise we'll end up having the same conversation a month from now.

Mr. Hughes: That's all I have for tonight.

Mr. Adams: Well I'd rather have the opportunity to again provide some informed opinion or information on some of the issues that have been generated and come back at the next meeting.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you anticipate a Public Hearing with the Planning Board?

Mr. Lapine: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: You do?

Mr. Lapine: Yes.

Mr. Manley: How far are you along in the Planning Board process?

Mr. Lapine: We received Conceptual Approval in September and we submitted our application to the Zoning Board in October and we had to get a formed signed by the…I think then time the owner of the Appraisal and we haven't been back to the Planning Board we've been working with the Zoning Board. We made our submittal finally in December.

Mr. Manley: O.K. So has there been any a…so there really hasn't been anything else except just the concept itself?

Mr. Lapine: We went to them with the concept and we had, you know we had a meeting with the Code Compliance prior to that and we had some dialogue with the a…

Mr. Manley: Well I read some of the minutes from the Planning Board it seemed like you had some discussions about mechanicals on the roof and coming driving down 9W and screening, you know, proper screening and there was some discussion about that but did much with relative to the traffic and the layout come out or no?

Mr. Lapine: Well one of the changes that they asked us at the Planning Board meeting was to square off our parking in the rear. We actually had parking and bring it closer to the back of the building, we had a parking area…we had a parking area on the western portion of the property.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Lapine: And we had the drive thru and circulation lane finding delivery vehicles coming around here so, parking here this area and they had asked us to make a modification.

Mr. Hughes: Does your applicant own all the properties at present or is this a contingency problem here?

Mr. Lapine: The applicant owns all the properties at present.

Mr. Hughes: All of the ones that are involved in this?

Mr. Lapine: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board?

Mr. Manley: Just one other, I didn't know if you had caught my question before? I actually addressed Mr. Adams but you were…I had asked a question with any variance the applicant attempts to come in with the smallest variance that they need but can the variance be obtained by another manner which would be possibly downsizing the building. And my question was, why was there a need to have a bank there? Why not just a convenience store? You have the larger area, a convenience store with the pumps and not have the 1400 sq. ft. for the bank then you'd probably have plenty of room to maneuver stuff around there without the need for a variance.

Mr. Lapine: I wish the applicant was here this evening to address that but he's informed us of is that on the west coast there is a trend that's moving towards gasoline-convenience stores and banks all combined some of what you've seen in the past five to ten years with the combining of the gasoline convenience stores and Dunkin Donuts. And he wanted to start getting involved in that trend early on.

Mr. Manley: It's funny, the last applicant that was here for a bank said that pharmacies are starting to get merged with each other so that's why they integrate Walgreen's and Key Bank so I guess it depends what you're doing…got you. West coast link. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing or a motion…? Yes?

Mr. Adams: I would like to ask for an opportunity to submit some additional prepping information.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. is that the wish of the Board?

Mr. Hughes: I think I'd rather see a more complete traffic study than just some more additional traffic information. 

Mr. Manley: I mean for me, I think the issue is more the setback requirements that's really what I'm looking at, nothing more, nothing less and of course, and of course my concern is the neighbors. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other opinions on that, on the traffic study?

Mr. Hughes: Well I agree with Mr. Manley on his part of it too but I think there's a lot of things on the peripheral here just not these two variances they're talking about. There's a lot of things here that don't add up to me. I'm not comfortable with any of it.   

Chairperson Cardone: I do agree with you Ron but I think that a lot of those issues need to be addressed by the Planning Board not this Board.

Mr. Hughes: That's what I'm saying. I think that we should recommend that the Planning Board take another look at this thing and then both parties or both Chairpersons of the both Boards can decide what belongs to them and what we should be looking at and make a better project all the way around. The products of this project is going to come to fruition let's make sure its safe, clean and looks good. Let's not slap something together.

Mr. Donovan: Well, here is what I think it comes down to. If you want additional traffic information you should identify what that is but then you should make motion to keep the Public Hearing open for that information. If you don't believe that you need that information to make your decision regarding the variances requested but would like to make recommendations to the Planning Board then…then I suggest you close the Public Hearing and you can deliberate and act without that additional traffic information. It's really, that's the decision that you need to make. 

Mr. Hughes: I'll make a motion for consideration that we consider our next move, include the Planning Board and maybe even the Town Attorney on this thing and compare some notes back and forth until we know better what we're looking at here. 

Mr. Donovan: I have no idea what that means Ron.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, well, gee it almost sounded like a lawyer there for a minute, didn't I? 

Mr. Donovan: Only you Ron, I can say could get choice "A" and choice "B" and you pick "C".

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Well I mean where I'm at right now I feel like I'm taking a true and false test with multiple choice answers. Where are we going? So I'll rephrase my motion then.  I'll move that we write a letter to the Planning Board requesting input from both Boards so we can move forward.

Mr. Maher: I'll make it easier. I make a motion we keep the Hearing open.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. until April, whatever the date is in April, for the purpose of?

Chairperson Cardone: Of what, Mike?

Mr. Maher: For the purpose of acquiring additional information for the traffic study.

Mr. Hughes: And providing a list to the applicant of what we're looking for. 

Mr. Donovan: And I think we need to do that as soon as is practical after tonight. I don't think we should wait until…

Mr. Hughes: I'm not trying to put anybody on…

Mr. Donovan: …he writes me another letter and I say I can't help you again. I don't want to do that.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. 

Mr. Donovan: I don't want to do that. 

Mr. Hughes: It's too bad the request wasn't put on the floor in the January meeting. We've had a cancellation because of the storm. My motives here are not to slow anything down. I'd like to know more information.

Chairperson Cardone: I think that then we have to be very specific this evening about what information you want to look at.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe we can have some time and put that together? I would really like some input about that parking situation and it’s a Planning issue. I would really like a traffic study because right now there hasn't been a new building put up in that area for a long time. The gas station across the street did a reno a few years back, a retrofit, so…and I'm not saying that to force them to go out and do a complete full blown traffic study either if there are other studies that took place in that area make them available. 

Chairperson Cardone: I would like to poll each Member of the Board and ask what specific information you would like to see. I'm going to start with Mr. Manley.

Mr. Manley: You have to start at my end, right? My issues aren't traffic related so there's really none that I have. The only thing that caught my attention, which, you know, I've been reading was the Section 185-13-D-1 which says that garages, carports or other areas, you know, can be counted as parking spaces. I was really looking at that and really trying to get a feel for that and how that determination was ever made and maybe who made that determination but that I don't think really is an issue that we're going to be ruling on anyway but I do see that I'm thinking that was meant maybe more for like apartment buildings or apartment houses as opposed to commercial. Because I don't know what commercial venue has a garage, you know, besides a, you know, a auto body shop or you know I mean so that's something that I don't really think that is relative to this. I want to review a little more closely the minutes with regard to some of issues that the neighbors had. I do believe you are looking at a very big change in area. You're taking a lot that really had a residential look and you're…you're merging it onto another one and making it, you know, more commercially developed than it is now so I have some issues with that and how that's going to effect the neighborhood. But those are things that I'm going to further look at between the next month.

Chairperson Cardone: Ruth? 

Ms. Eaton: I'd like to know if the applicant would be willing to not have a bank there?

That may lessen the traffic situation it may not.  

Mr. Adams: A…unfortunately the principal is out of the country I can't answer that tonight but if he didn't have a bank he'd want another use that's possible that some of the issues that the Board has raised would also be related to that use as it has to a bank use. A bank is just any one of a number of permitted uses in the district.

Chairperson Cardone: John?

Mr. McKelvey: I think that I go along with that bank issue. You know, it could create less of a problem. I know you're here just for setbacks on the two sides but with all the other issues…I think the Planning Board is going to take up a lot of these issues.

Mr. Hughes: What's your actual floor area on the retail space on the complex without the bank?

Mr. Lapine: 3600 sq. ft.

Mr. Hughes: 3600 sq. ft.

Chairperson Cardone: Brenda?

Ms. Drake: I'm inclined to think that without the bank you might be able to get rid of the parking in the back here, slide the building back and then bring the canopy farther from 9W. I have an issue with how much of the canopy is in the front yard setback. So I'm inclined to say without a bank or other use…is an issue for me.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Mike?

Mr. Maher: One question to that, we discussed I believe last time, closing the one exit. Was that correct? Closing the southern most exit was that something we discussed last time?

Mr. Lapine: We did. And it’s a requirement of the D.O.T. to have that southern access.

Mr. Maher: To have it or eliminate it?

Mr. Lapine: To have it. These access points came from the D.O.T.

Mr. Maher: O.K. so the southern most is remaining?

Mr. Lapine: Yes.

Mr. Maher: O.K. That being said, I guess what I would like to see is a traffic study really depicting the actual impacts that, you know, that the additional traffic is going to have the neighborhood and the street surrounding it. To see an actual number of cars in and out, you know, on an hourly basis. Only the fact that in effect you do utilize the side streets it's going to impact the neighborhood, you know, significantly that way. The fact that you have a bank there and you know, a larger service station more updated there is additionally obviously be additional traffic in and out of there. So I want to be comfortable with that if in fact that if a decent amount how much is going to affect the neighborhood?

Ms. Drake: Is there any plans to approve the side roads at all? Do any improvements on that by you?

Mr. Lapine: Yes the D.O.T. is asking that approximately three feet be added to the north side of North Plank Road up to our ingress and egress turn.

Ms. Drake: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Ron? 

Mr. Hughes: I think I've already stated what I'm looking for, I mean there's a bunch of stuff.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. I have heard traffic study by two Members of the Board.

Mr. Lapine: I'm assuming you'll also identify the intersections that you're concerned about with that traffic study that you'd like us to visit. I want to make sure we have a clear picture of everything. 

Chairperson Cardone: Well I think that Mike addressed that with looking at the side streets.

Mr. Maher: Yeah, I mean my biggest concern obviously is not 9W. It is a busy corridor to begin with but it’s the impact on the neighborhood directly to the south of it so. Anything out of the ingress/egress on North Plank Road, you know, what their idea is as far as, local using the facility and then traveling the back roads versus the traffic on 9W, just going back on 9W. Obviously it's difficult going back on 9W with the current layout so.

Mr. Hughes: Did the D.O.T. have any comments on your side, on the south entrance? The in and out there on the old North Plank Road?

Mr. Lapine: No, this was worked out with the D.O.T. by the traffic consultant, John Collins. 

Mr. Hughes: And they had no problem with in and out on Old North Plank Road?

Mr. Lapine: No problems at all.

Mr. Hughes: Even though there's a triangle out there and you can't go back north on 9W coming out of that road?

Mr. Lapine: Well our plan had showed some improvements that were discussed with the D.O.T., which I had a mentioned earlier. We were going to coordinate our improvements with the City.

Mr. Hughes: I can remember the discussion. Was there any result? 

Mr. Lapine: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: What did they say?

Mr. Lapine: That they can coordinate our improvements into their plans and that they recommended a meeting once we go back to the Planning Board, if we do, for further design.

Mr. Hughes: So its still unknown what they intend to do there?

Mr. Lapine: Unknown?

Mr. Hughes: Are you following what I'm getting at here?

Mr. Lapine: I'm not really sure.

Mr. Hughes: The triangle and (inaudible)

Mr. Lapine: The triangle is intended to be removed.

Mr. Hughes: To allow traffic to go both ways?

Mr. Lapine: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: So that's going to make more of a mess. Right now that triangle keeps people from running into each other.

Mr. Lapine: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And they're talking about taking it out?

Mr. Lapine: They're talking about taking it out.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Let's go for a full-blown traffic study. Let's look what we're really doing here now. I mean this changes every time I get another taste of it.

Mr. McKelvey: As far as the D.O.T. you're going to have to do what the D.O.T. tells you.

Mr. Hughes: Right and I'd like to know what they have on plans not just they're going to make an improvement. Sometimes what the D.O.T. does that they call improvement doesn't really improve from what I've observed. 

Ms. Drake: I'd also ask if we could have something in writing from the City engineer stating that they're looking at the plans and it conforms with the issues that they're dealing with in the City of Newburgh and Route 9W.

Mr. Lapine: If I may approach the Board?

Mr. Lapine approached and handed in a copy of an email from Craig Marti.

Mr. Hughes: What's your water and sewer situation there? Are you connected to…?

Mr. Lapine: Municipal water and sewer.

Mr. Hughes: Which Municipality?

Mr. Lapine: We are connected to the Town of Newburgh Municipal water and our…our a outlet from our site goes within the Town right of way but goes into the City sewer. We have to get permission from the City to tie in as all projects do to the City L's and sewer.

Mr. Manley: Who is the engineer or the…?

Mr. Lapine: The traffic engineer is John Collins.

Mr. Manley: No the actual engineer that went before the Planning Board?

Mr. Lapine: I did.

Mr. Manley: You did?

Mr. Lapine: Yeah, I did.

Ms. Eaton: What about the size of the delivery trucks, the ones that deliver groceries to convenient mart, are they tractor-trailers? 

Mr. Lapine: They are typically…

Ms. Eaton: Are they panels or…?

Mr. Lapine: They hopefully range in size from about eighteen to thirty foot, the delivery type vehicle is almost like what you'd call an SU 30 type vehicles and we've provided a location here for parking for them while the deliver. 

Mr. Maher: So, let me ask one more question. I'm sorry. As far as delivery vehicles go, so now you're going to be…is there a weight limit currently on North Plank Road on that section?

Mr. Hughes: There is, but I don't know what this is. I think it says 3 tons.

Mr. Maher: My concern is obviously any; any fuel delivery truck would now have to exit going southbound.

Mr. Lapine: Correct.

Mr. Maher: If they were to go northbound they would have to utilize the Town road, correct?

Mr. Lapine: You're correct.

Mr. Maher: Would there be a requirement that they would…that they would have to exit southbound only?

Mr. Lapine: Well the intent would be to have an exit southbound, there would be parking in this location in order to unload the fueling facility, the truck would. This would be for delivery vehicles delivering soda a…

Mr. Maher: No, I understand that but I mean so that there would be no time they would be exiting on North Plank Road now?

Mr. Lapine: They couldn't accommodate this type of turning movement with a fuel truck. 

Mr. Hughes: Where is the footprint of your storage tanks? 

Mr. Lapine: Right now they're, right now they're being proposed in this location here. We don't have them turned on in this drawing. We don't have all our underground facilities turned on in the site plan drawing.

Mr. Hughes: So then where would you bring that tractor-trailer in to fuel? You'd come in there and go out the next one?

Mr. Lapine: And come out the second one, correct.

Mr. Hughes: That would be the restriction? Would there be a restriction about that because how else could…?

Mr. Lapine: Well a tractor-trailer cannot make this movement in there.

Mr. Hughes: And it can't go around the building either?

Mr. Lapine: Absolutely not.

Mr. Hughes: So you're forced to go in and out of there and that's the only way you can deliver fuel there?

Mr. Lapine: Yes. For ease of convenience that's…that's…

Mr. Hughes: That's kind of restrictive. What do you do in the wintertime if you have a snow plowing problem and things of that nature?

Mr. Lapine: Well they're going to have to coordinate their snow plowing activities with their delivery services.

Mr. Hughes: I've heard enough.

Mr. Lapine: It's customary for all gas filling stations to do that. Because the applicant owns…

Mr. Hughes: It's poor planning. I don't know if it's customary. I mean now why would you make it so it's difficult to get your delivery in and out?

Mr. Lapine: I'm not sure why this is difficult to get the delivery in and out. 

Mr. Hughes: You're an engineer not a tractor-trailer driver.

Mr. Lapine: I'm an engineer but the applicant also owns and operates approximately one hundred gas stations and he has reviewed this and works for the business that he deals with. So if I understand this correctly? I'm going to get everything in writing but in order to get a head start on some of this stuff you'd like us to do a traffic impact study that looks at the intersection of 9W?

Chairperson Cardone: Correct.    

Mr. Lapine: And North Plank Road, looking at the intersection of Jamison Place and North Plank Road, the intersection of Crescent Avenue and North Plank Road? There was also some comments about eliminate the bank.

Chairperson Cardone: That's correct.

Mr. Lapine: Are there any other uses within the B District that we shouldn't consider although they are permitted?

Mr. Hughes: That all hinges on the answer to the parking compulsion. Right now you're saying that you can get away with using twelve of those spaces as people at the pump. What your use may be in conjunction and what's permitted in that zone may require more parking.

Mr. Lapine: One of the, you know, going back to the parking I know we keep revisiting this, I thought we put it to rest but parking at the pumps is a acceptable parking space.

Mr. Hughes: We're past that there is no need to bring that up.

Mr. Lapine: The convenience, one of the services they sell is gasoline, so parking at the pump is purchasing product should be considered and I don't know why we're continuing to have this discussion bringing up parking. It should be considered acceptable and I don't think we should continue to address the parking.

Mr. Hughes: I said we're past that maybe you didn't hear what I said. What I said was if you're going to use the parking for there and your other accessory use may generate more parking requirements then twelve you're counting there might not add up to what the total figure is you need.

Mr. Lapine: And at the last Board meeting we talked about that 1400 sq. ft. would require seven parking spaces.

Mr. Hughes: So now if you change to a different use, of a different type, it may require you to have a different parking regulation.

Mr. Lapine: Well we have to consider that. 

Mr. Hughes: That's why I don't want any surprises. 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we keep this Public Hearing open.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Mr. McKelvey: What's the date of the next one?

Ms. Gennarelli: April 22nd.

Mr. McKelvey: April 22nd.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. we've got a motion and a second. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Michael Maher: Yes

 

          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Manley: I just have the one question. You were before the Planning Board and it looks like there was a meeting January 29, 2009?

Mr. Lapine: No. 

Mr. Manley: Unless they have the wrong date here. There was a Mr. Brown that was present, Charles Brown, Charlie Brown, applicant's representative. 

Mr. Hughes: He is an engineer.

Mr. Manley: Oh, you know what I think I'm reading; hold on, wrong date, 2009.

Ms. Eaton: Was it June 2009?

Mr. Lapine: I…I can't tell you, I know of another engineer involved in this.

Mr. Manley: There was just a Public Hearing I think back in or a Conceptual Site Plan back in 2009, January 29th of 2009. No?

Mr. Lapine: I believe, either in June or July of 2009 I was before the Planning Board for a Public Hearing for Homewood Gas Station.

Mr. Adams: You can see Gasland in several locations so but you need to check addresses.

Mr. Lapine: That one was on Route 17K.

Mr. Manley: No this one wasn't. It says Route 9W, Shell and it says Section 84, Block 1, Lot 1.2, B zone. This is from the Planning Board though, I just want to make sure that this was the…this was part of the same process or if it wasn't I need to scrap it.

Mr. Lapine: I'm not aware of this project being before the Planning Board in June. 

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Ms. Drake: You mean January.

Chairperson Cardone: January 29th.

Mr. Lapine: I…I didn't take the project on until a…July.

Chairperson Cardone: But it was before the Planning Board in January, Conceptual Site Plan. Correct?

Mr. Adams: It's possible an earlier version. 

Mr. Hughes: I think you are right, Mr. Manley, I think Mr. Brown represented it over year ago.

Chairperson Cardone: And then again, in September, September 3rd.

Mr. Lapine: That's when we presented.

Mr. Hughes: If I may suggest to you on that non-residential off street parking, I believe its 185-13 but you have to read it very carefully because there's several sections there that are conflicting and they cross reference each other. Make sure you have the right thing for the B Zone for your new use.

Chairperson Cardone: At this point, we had a vote on holding this open until the April meeting.

Mr. Adams: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: I would like to add to that list if you want to get started early on your homework, correspondence from the D.O.T. and their results of what they're recommending to you and all correspondences from both the Town and Mr. Marti from the City about their water and sewer issues as well.

Mr. Lapine: So you want us to address the water and sewer for our project as far as the Zoning application?  

Mr. Hughes: Or for the Planning.

Mr. Lapine: There are some people on the side of the Board that shake their head saying no, I'm just trying to figure out what.

Mr. Hughes: Well that's why we have an odd number of people we don't always all agree.

Mr. Lapine: Yeah, I just want to make sure I'm getting this…

Mr. McKelvey: I think the water and sewer would be Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: I think so too but I would like to be informed on that as well to make sure that you have something to plug into. You're on Town water and you're on City sewer.

Mr. Lapine: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. both of them to plant.

Mr. Lapine: They own the plant, correct. We have to get approval from both of them.

Mr. Hughes: Both of them right.

Mr. Lapine: The Town grants approval for the water. We'll add that, no problem.

Mr. Hughes: That will be fine. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you.     
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(3-1-113.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for storage of more than (4) four vehicles to build an accessory structure (detached garage).  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Philip Castore.   

Mr. Castore: My name is Philip Castore. I'm here to seek a variance to build a pole barn on my property. 

Chairperson Cardone: And at the last meeting we did not have the information from the County Department of Planning which we do have now and their recommendation was Local Determination. O.K. the question was asked last time whether or not you were planning to conduct a business from that location. I believe you answered no.

Mr. Castore: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: You do have a business though called Living Skin?

Mr. Castore: That's who I work for.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. And just state again what the building will be used for.

Mr. Castore: A workshop, to store my farm equipment. I have a tractor. I'm a hobbyist, do woodworking. I'd like to build a boat. 

Ms. Drake: There was also a question as to whether the pool had to be calculated in the square footage for…

Mr. Castore: I believe that's why I had to get a variance for the pole barn.

Ms. Drake: And we received a letter from Code Compliance, Joe Mattina, stating that it doesn't need to be calculated?

Mr. McKelvey: No it wasn't calculated.

Chairperson Cardone: No it wasn't

Mr. Donovan: Well I think it says it doesn't…its not. 

Mr. Maher: It advises its not calculated for accessory buildings only for lot surface coverage.

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Ms. Drake: So therefore it doesn't need to be included.

Mr. Maher: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: I think the issue is since he's got a garage attached to his house that this structure could accommodate more cars than are allowed on the property.

Ms. Drake: So therefore that would change the variance to allow more than 4 cars per lot. 4-car garage.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: Well the Notice of Disapproval is storage of more than (4) four vehicles not permitted. And so, if I understand Joe's letter correctly he calculates the existing garage plus this structure and concludes that there is the potential for more than (4) four vehicles to be stored and therefore it's in front of us.  So if the testimony of the applicant is you're not going to have any cars there.

Mr. Castore: There's no paved road or any kind of road it's in the backyard on a 2-acre property.

Chairperson Cardone: Not at this time, no.

Mr. Donovan: That would be, if the Board is so inclined, that would be a reasonable condition to impose on the issuance of the variance that it not be utilized for motor vehicle storage based upon the applicant's testimony.

Mr. Maher: Not utilized for more than (3) three vehicle storage.

Mr. Donovan: Well, I mean…

Mr. Hughes: You can have up to (4) four.

Mr. Donovan: Well that's up to you guys.    

Mr. Hughes: By Code you can have up to (4) four. 

Ms. Eaton: It does have a garage door in it however, right?

Mr. Castore: It does have a garage door, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: And it would not be used as an art gallery?

Mr. Castore: No.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So with the pool he's over 110 feet of the 1000 that you can absolutely have and you have two acres of land or better?

Mr. Castore: Two acres, yes.

Mr. Hughes: So with the pool he's 110 feet over.

Mr. Maher: Well the pool is not taken into account.

Mr. Donovan: Correct. The pool is not being counted on the…

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so then if you've got 960 for the pool… he's 4 over? Could that be?

Mr. Donovan: Isn't it the determination by Mr. Mattina that he doesn't need a variance for that?

Mr. Maher: Right.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Donovan: The only issue before the Board is that there could be storage of more than (4) four vehicles?

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. No business and no fifth car, right is that the issue that we're at now?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes that is.

Mr. Hughes: Deducting the pool? I have nothing else.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board? Anything from the public?
Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Michael Maher: Yes

 

          James Manley: Abstain

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. The Public Hearing is closed.

Mr. Castore: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:52 PM)

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 25, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 9:50 PM) 



PHILIP CASTORE



136 FOREST ROAD, WALLKILL







(3-1-113.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for storage of more than (4) four vehicles to build an accessory structure (detached garage).  

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application, Philip Castore at 136 Forest Road, Wallkill, seeking an area variance for storage of more than (4) four vehicles to build an accessory structure (detached garage). This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Maher: I think we addressed the issue that the pool square footage doesn't count in the accessory area and the fact that we discussed limiting to no more than four cars as part of the requirement. 

Ms. Drake: And also have no businesses, conduct no business in that…

Mr. Maher: Correct.

Ms. Drake: …pole barn. I'll make a motion with those conditions to approve the application.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Michael Maher: Yes

 

          James Manley: Abstain

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

 (Time Noted – 9:51 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MARCH 25, 2010            (Time Noted – 8:52 PM) 



RAYJAS REALTY CORPORATION
5228-5263 ROUTE 9W, NBGH







(27-2-25) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the 1000 sq. ft. separation requirement from another existing gasoline station to build a gasoline station and convenience store.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Rayjas Realty Corporation. We have the report from the County. The recommendation is Local Determination. 

Mr. Cordisco: Good evening everyone. It's nice to see you again. I'm Dominic Cordisco from the law firm of Drake, Loeb.

Ms. Gennarelli: Dominic could you just closer?  

Mr. Cordisco: I'm a little to far away. I apologize.

Ms. Gennarelli: That's good. Thank you.

Mr. Cordisco: Yes and I'm here from the law firm of Drake, Loeb on behalf of the applicant which is Route 9W Carter Associates along with Rayjas Realty and we were here before you in January for a Public Hearing on the proposed gas station at the intersection of Route 9W and Carter Avenue. Before that, we of course, we were referred over by the Planning Board and on November, I want to say November 9th, we received conceptual approval from the Planning Board with a referral to this Board recognizing that we needed a variance because we ran up against the provisions of the Code I think its 185-28-G which starts out saying in instances of gas stations and convenience stores the Planning Board must take into account traffic but also it has a prohibition against gas stations to than 1000 sq.ft. from the nearest gas station. So we ran afoul of that particular provision because of course there is a gas station/convenience store across the street from this particular facility that we're proposing and we came before you in January and made our presentation and the Board was concerned about traffic impacts. So what we agreed to do was keep the Public Hearing open and then to basically speed up our traffic analysis. We always knew we were going to have to do traffic and we were proposing certain improvements to traffic up front but we were planning on doing that through the Planning Board process. In fact, the Planning Board when the made their referral over to the Zoning Board recognized that in fairness to us and in fairness to the process they were recommending and uncoordinated SEQRA review so that the bulk of the engineering could happen when we returned, if we returned to the Planning Board. But never the less, we recognize that traffic is an issue in regards to the variance which we're seeking so we hired Phil Greeley of John Collins Engineering who did the traffic report and that's been submitted to the Board and the Town's consultant and I think at this point it would be best for Phil to speak and talk about his study and what we're proposing.

Mr. Greeley: Good evening, Philip Greeley, John Collins Engineers. We were asked to prepare the traffic study for the site. The proposal is for a gas station/convenience store and the first step in the traffic study was to look at the existing traffic conditions along Route 9W. We studied the Carter Avenue intersection with 9W as well as traffic across the street at the Stewart's Shops. And there is two reasons to study that traffic one was to make sure we took into account their traffic movements but also to see what type of traffic generation that facility has during peak hours. And we looked at morning peak, afternoon peaks. In addition, we obtained data from the New York State Department of Transportation for the 9W corridor. At the time of our study, our traffic counts had to be collected in January of this year. We had historical data from the D.O.T. from 2008 and 2009 as well as other studies that we've done over the last 5 or 6 years over the 9W corridor, several intersections north of the location. So we had a good database to identify those peak hours and to look at what the volumes are today on the corridor.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a list of those projects?

Mr. Greeley: Yes. The Vista and Griener subdivision, the Filiberti subdivision, some of the intersections we looked up at McCall and 9W, up where the Mobil Station is and there are a few…three or four other projects along the corridor.   

Mr. Hughes: Could you provide a list of those?

Mr. Greeley: Absolutely, yes. In addition, as I said the Department of Transportation has data for the corridor south of Carter Avenue and now during peak hours there's no surprise, the volume on 9W its…we're handling about two thousand vehicles in an hour, total in both directions on Route 9W. In the afternoon we have queues that extend along the corridor. If you look at starting at 84 traveling north, by the intersections of Fostertown and Chestnut Lane, those are probably the more critical intersections because you have more cross traffic. At Carter Avenue it actually works fairly well. Its not the key bottleneck, I'll say, in the corridor. In looking at this study and the volumes that we have and the traffic generation for this type of use we need to make improvements for it to function here and the proposal is to create a four-legged intersection with Carter Avenue so that where the traffic signal is would also serve our site. We would eliminate some of the existing curb cuts to the properties that are involved here and concentrate the left turn movements at the traffic signal. There would be another access; we will put up the site plan in a minute that would be right turn in/right turn out at the northerly end of the property. But left turns would be controlled at the signalized intersection. Now in order to do that we have to widen and essentially create a mirror image of the left turn lane on 9W going on to Carter Avenue we would have a mirror image of that left turn lane into our property. We would also be widening to rebuild the shoulder and create a right turn lane and the proposal is to do these on either lands within the State right-of-way and/or lands that are under our control. Our property frontage extends quite a distance along 9W. In terms of traffic generation for this type of use in the peak hours a high percentage especially on a corridor like 9W is what we call pass by or diverted link trips so that people that are on the road that would come into a use like this they are already there. We looked at two different ranges of those percentages on a corridor like this it's usually a very high percentage, 65 to as high as 80%. We've done some studies recently showing 80%. We've also looked at a sensitivity if it was a much lower percentage. Now you still have to accommodate the traffic at the driveway so even though the people may already be on the roadway you have to accommodate them as left turns and right turns. So the generation in our analysis is full generation for the use it's just the function of some of those people will be already on the road. As this process continues we have to get New York State D.O.T. Permits. At this point, the discussions we've had with D.O.T. are just location and concept of getting rid of driveways and creating our access at the signalized intersection. We would also have to replace that signal to upgrade it to most current design standards and to accommodate the additional heads from the added driveway, etc. we have to basically replace the traffic signal. So its road widening, signal replacement and as specified in our study one the other items that we talked about was being able to coordinate some of the signals south of here, at Chestnut and Fostertown and the equipment is now available to allow that. We've had very preliminary discussions with D.O.T. about possibly doing that. They are looking at themselves but that's something we may get into as part of our…once we replace this signal helping with that situation. So that's pretty much the contents of the traffic study, our recommended improvements. I know that the Board's consultant and I think also for they've responded to both this Board and the Planning Board. I reviewed the study and I believe they've provided a letter. 

Chairperson Cardone: And the road widening is taking place on the east side of 9W?

Mr. Greeley: The road widening would take place on actually both sides of 9W. The majority of it would be on our side on the east side. It's really a mirror image of what's existing at the opposite approach. We're mirror imaging that. There's some work that would be done on the west side. We have to rebuild shoulders. Once you touch the road, start widening, D.O.T. requires you upgrade their facility. But the majority of the widening would be along our side, our frontage of 9W.

Chairperson Cardone: The question came up before about peak hours. Could you define peak hours for us?

Mr. Greeley: Well with 9W you have heavy traffic all day but there is…

Chairperson Cardone: I know.

Mr. Greeley: …there is a morning peak and there's an afternoon peak. And the morning peak generally runs anywhere from 7, this is the highest one hour period, from 7 to 8 or 7:15 to 8:15; in the afternoon pretty much from 4:30 on to 6:30 is pretty consistent. If you look at the D.O.T. data you can see hour-by-hour what their variations are but those are the highest time periods. If you looked at the highest total volumes those would be the time periods you'd be looking at. 

Mr. Hughes: So the 2000 hour, the 2000 quarter of an hour that you quoted were in those high peak windows?

Mr. Greeley: Yes. And the 2000, the afternoon peak hour was the highest combination, the 2000 vehicles would occur in that time frame.

Mr. Hughes: 5:30 to 7:30?

Mr. Greeley: No, pretty much from 4:30 through 6:30 in that time bracket. It varies a little bit, you know, one day to the next but if you look at, you know, 5 to 6 at let's say a one-hour slot you'd have about two thousand vehicles total both directions.

Mr. Hughes: And what about on a daily basis?

Mr. Greeley: The daily volume, I'll tell you what you need; this is NYS D.O.T. average annual daily traffic would be. This April 2008 and their AADT northbound is 11,848 and southbound is just over 11,000 so when you look at an AADT you're really looking at the total roadway around 22,000 vehicles per day. 

Mr. Hughes: Almost around 1000 an hour around the clock. You're traffic I'm looking for some other guys to pick on. Thank you for answering my questions. There were some other situations here about the water, which you can clearly see on the overhead here that runs down that driveway and there's other areas where the water comes out all over that property. And then the big question is what are you going to do with the leftovers there is no sewer in that part of the world?

Mr. Shaw: For the record, my name is Greg Shaw, I'm with Shaw Engineering and in response to those two questions we're going to be grading the entire site. We're also going to bring in some fill. The over the land flow which flow, which flows down onto our site, will continue to drain towards 9W. We will re-grade it, we will put in a storm drainage system and we're proposing to put in a series of swails to catch this stormwater and divert it around our development. With respect to the stormwater that's generated by the impervious areas such as the buildings and the pavement that will be collected by an interior storm drainage system. If we were just going to build on the existing dirt the issues with respect to storm drainage would continue but we're not. We're re-grading it, we're putting in systems and in some areas we're filling and raising the elevation. So I think we have a handle on how to take care of the existing drainage situation on that property. And with respect to the sewage disposal system there's a sand filter that exists on the property which is tied into the State culvert which crosses under Route 9W. What we're proposing to do is to abandon that system and put a new sewage disposal system in more than likely would be a package plant that would be in an elevated area of the site and that in turn would need a Permit from the New York State D.E.C. which would be, you know, applied for at the appropriate time. So both these issues can be addressed. They have not been fully addressed at this time. It's very premature but I hope that's enough information to answer your question.   

Mr. Hughes: Where do you plan on diverting them to?

Mr. Shaw: Diverting what to?

Mr. Hughes: The leftovers, either the stormwater or the septic plant?

Mr. Shaw: (Pointing at an exhibit) As I said, the stormwater which is flowing from the higher road, I believe its Albany Post Road, is going to flow into this direction heading towards the west. We have a drainage swale before we hit the developed portion of this site and that's going to collect the overland flow and between a series of drainage ditch and piping we're wrapping it around our site and we're going to be discharging it into the State's drainage system at approximately this location. With respect to the stormwater that's being generated by the developed portion of the site we're collecting it, we're going to be treating it, we're going to be detaining it all in accordance with the NYS D.E.C. regulations and that in turn will drain into the State's drainage system 

Mr. Hughes: Subterranean system?

Mr. Shaw: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And what about the package plant, where would that discharge into?  

Mr. Shaw: That would discharge into the present location that the sand filter is draining to now which is a catch basin at approximately this location and the stormwater flows across Route 9W.  

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a Permit number or something on that? No one can seem to find any paperwork on what you're talking about.

Mr. Shaw: No, I don't. 

Mr. Hughes: One more question Mr. Shaw, have you seen this sand pit that you're talking about?

Ms. Gennarelli: I'm sorry, Greg, you are going to have to get up again. Thank you.

Mr. Shaw: Have I seen this sand pit? 

Mr. Hughes: Well you made reference to a…

Mr. Shaw: The existing one?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Shaw: Yes, I've seen it. It's in a lawn area. I've seen the head of it; I've seen the chlorinator, all right, and I've see what I believe to be the discharge point into the drainage system. Other than that, that's all you can see. 

Mr. Hughes: Are you aware of the wells that exist on that property and the adjacent properties as well?

Mr. Shaw: The wells that are that exist on that property, they're going to be abandoned, all right, we're going to be tying into the Town's water system and we're going to be a sufficient distance from adjacent wells if they are located in proximity to the site to comply with the Health Department and D.E.C. reg's.

Mr. Hughes: Do you intend to on any level to cap those wells off so that underneath that that whatever you do on this site won't travel somewhere else?

Mr. Shaw: If there are drinking water wells, O.K., they are going to have to be…they're going to have to be abandoned according to an AWWA standards which basically means you have to fill them with concrete. O.K.? Which I think answers your concern. 

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, do you have any way of grabbing the tail on this tiger with the paper on those old systems are or anything?   

Mr. Canfield: To answer your question in short, no. This site is quite old, there used to be a trailer park on there and there was some structures on there and I'm not even sure of what serves this sand filter system right now, what goes into it I don't know, from what structures.

Mr. Hughes: I think there's one trailer and two dwellings left over from you talked about and they go into that there. 

Mr. Canfield: I'm not certain…

Mr. Hughes: There's two wells there as well.

Mr. Canfield: I'm not certain they're even occupied as residential property.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe you ought to check on that too.  

Mr. Canfield: In my spare time, Ron.

Ms. Drake: Will those existing trailers that are there that are…are they going to stay there or are they going to be removed?

Mr. Cordisco: No, they are going to be removed, all the structures.

Ms. Drake: Thank you. 

Mr. Cordisco: And as Phil had said, all the existing curb cuts out to 9W would be eliminated and consolidated according to the plan.

Mr. Hughes: So let me understand this, your primary offense is that you are within 1000 feet of an existing gas station and it’s a zoning issue?

Mr. Cordisco: That's correct. I mean that that's the only reason we are before this Board. 

Mr. Donovan: And what we had asked them to do is we took a look at that provision of the Code and said what's the purpose of that provision of the Code, it appears to be if you take a look at that subdivision to deal with the effect of traffic. So we asked them to prepare a traffic study to address that issue. That they have done, they submitted into the Town's traffic consultant and the Town's traffic consultant has issued a letter jointly addressed to the Planning Board and to the Zoning Board.

Mr. Hughes: And what section is that that refers to that 1000-foot distance, the bulk requirement table? 

Mr. Donovan: No, 185-28-G.

Mr. Hughes: 28-G.

Mr. Donovan: Which says, before the Planning Board shall approve the plans for a car wash or a motor vehicle service station, the Board shall consider the potential interference with or danger to traffic on all abutting streets. The cumulative effects of all curb cuts for any such new use shall also be considered and in no instance shall a new motor vehicle service station or any other establishment dispensing gasoline be permitted to established within 1000-feet in any direction from a lot on which there is an existing motor vehicle service station.

Mr. Cordisco: This actually is an issue that's been before this Board before. Actually my office represented Amerada Hess and in 2003 this Board granted a variance for the Hess Station on Route 300, which at that time was within 1000-feet of another gas station And the Board at that point and just as you are now looked at traffic as an issue. There was a traffic study there, the traffic study there concluded that there was no significant impact to traffic and of course the Board's consultant concurred in that at the time and that was part of your decision at that time.

Mr. McKelvey: The other gas station never opened. There was a Lloyd's

Mr. Cordisco: That's correct. It was the…it was the prior Lloyd's that is correct but the reason for the variance was still the same.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a copy of that resolution?

Mr. Cordisco: I do. 

Mr. Donovan: Earlier today or maybe yesterday, Mr. Cordisco did provide me with a copy of that as well and I can quote from a part of the decision that said in response to concerns of adverse traffic conditions which may be created on Union Avenue as a result of the applicant's proposed construction of a motor vehicle service station a traffic study was submitted demonstrating that from Union Avenue the driveway into the site is a right turn only and a right only, etc. basically saying that the traffic study addressed any traffic concerns that may have prohibited the use to be located within 1000-feet of the existing use. And that's a decision of this Board from… 

Mr. Cordisco: 2003.

Mr. Donovan: …February, Valentine's Day (February 14th) 2003.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, what is Town Law 267-B tell you? 

Mr. Donovan: It tells you that you have to weigh five factors when you issue an area variance.

Mr. Donovan: It says you…

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so that's just a generic five rule?

Mr. Donovan: It's the generic; it's the road map we're supposed to …

Mr. Hughes: Because it cites it here and I didn't realize it was known as that.

Mr. Cordisco: In our application we laid out our viewpoint on those five factors. One of the primary ones of course is is whether or not there is going to be an adverse change to the character of the neighborhood. This of course is that entire corridor that we're proposing to put this facility in zoned in the B zone so it is a commercial corridor and it is a permitted use as of right but for the fact that we're within 1000-feet of another gas station. One of the other factors you have to consider is whether or not there is going to be any adverse impacts and as you can see from the prior 2003 decision the primary and sole concern to it was whether or not there was going to be a traffic impact. That was all that was cited in that particular decision.

Mr. Manley: The only other difference I think that you're looking at between the two sites potentially is, obviously 300 is a much wider thoroughfare. That would be one factor, which in your particular plan, you're showing to mitigate and the second thing that kind of jumps out at me is the fact that that area of the Town is serviced by sewer and water versus this area of the Town is only serviced by water. So I think the other, you know, weighing factor to you have to look at is, you know, this is going need some sort of package plant or someway to, you know, address that issue. 

Mr. Cordisco: Yes, and certainly those are engineering issues that we have to fully, fully develop for the Planning Board and have to meet all Permitting standards for.     

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to see what that's going to develop into. I'd like to see some more information on the package plant and all of the bells and whistles that go with it and I would recommend that we hold the Public Hearing until we have that kind of information to go on. The same thing, I'd like some information with the D.O.T. their perspective on what they can do with the light coordination to keep the traffic cleaned up there. Other than that I have no other things that I have my eye on except that water problem and I'd like to see some better plans on what they're going to do about that.

Mr. Cordisco: Mr. Hughes, I appreciate that and I think that if this Board grants the variance then we're going to be before the Planning Board and you'll have a full and fair opportunity to review the plans at that time. When the Planning Board made their referral, as I mentioned earlier, they suggested to this Board that an uncoordinated review is appropriate because otherwise we would have to go through the expense of fully designing and engineering this project only for this Board, which of course its discretionary you could turn down our variance and then of course we would have gone through that expense when its really a Planning Board issue at that particular point.

Mr. Hughes: Would you feel comfortable with providing the information on that package plant you talked about?  

Mr. Cordisco: Not at this time, no, no.

Mr. Hughes: Then I wouldn't think that I would feel comfortable about granting a variance without knowing about that end of it.

Mr. Cordisco: And at this point we're asking for a variance for 185-28-G which the sole concern is traffic. The Board raised that as an issue at your January meeting, we agreed to hold the Public Hearing open, go off and do the traffic study up front rather than waiting to do it before the Planning Board. We've done that in good faith with the understanding that that was something that was legitimately a concern of this Board because traffic is an issue when you're dealing with this particular variance and we believe we provided that information at this time.

Mr. McKelvey: I think all the other stuff is the Planning Board is going to have to make the decisions, Ron.

Ms. Drake: The Planning Board and the D.E.C.

Mr. Hughes: And the D.E.C. or the E.P.A or somebody.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, that's all…I think that's all under the... 

Mr. Hughes: Inaudible.

Mr. Cordisco: I don't think the E.P.A., I think we're just before the Planning Board and the D.E.C.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well I'm just…

Mr. McKelvey: That would be all under their…the Planning Board's jurisdiction.

Ms. Drake: Maybe D.O.H., the Health Department.    

Mr. Cordisco: Correct, correct.

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Shaw, could you provide us with some more information about the nature of this package plant?

Mr. Shaw: No, I can't, because I will not be designing it. We're going to use specialty…

Chairperson Cardone: You need the microphone please. 

Mr. Shaw: Sorry.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: And you're confident that the D.E.C. Discharge Permit will allow them to go into the drainage?

Mr. Shaw: What I'm confident is that the burden is upon us to attain the Permit from the D.E.C. and if we don't there is no project that I'm confident of. And no I will not be designing the package plant. That will have to be somebody that has expertise in that area. 

Mr. Hughes: Part of my question, I don't think, was addressed. Maybe I didn't phrase it properly but your intention for this package plant would be to discharge into the drainage?

Mr. Shaw: Yes, based upon…

Mr. Hughes: With those MS4s in place that were just adopted?

Mr. Shaw: Based upon my knowledge of the site and again I will not be doing the design but if you ask me the question I think what you're looking at is some type of a sand filter with a chlorinator that will discharge into a vehicle offsite as opposed to having the…absorb into the ground.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I wouldn't recommend it went into the ground but again I am concerned about the MS4 regulations about the separation of stormwater and discharge.

Mr. Cordisco: We will have to comply. We will have to comply but you're asking us to address and answer your question at this point when the work has not yet been done. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Manley: I would, if the Chair would entertain a motion, I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing at this point. I don't think that there is anything further that we can a gather from this.

Ms. Drake: I'll second that motion.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.        

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No

                                  Michael Maher: Yes

 

          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Cordisco: Thank you all very much. 

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. In the interest of time I would ask you if you would step out in the hallway and we will call you back in.

(Time Noted – 9:23 PM)
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RAYJAS REALTY CORPORATION
5228-5263 ROUTE 9W, NBGH







(27-2-25) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the 1000 sq. ft. separation requirement from another existing gasoline station to build a gasoline station and convenience store.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Rayjas Realty Corporation, 5228-5263 Route 9W seeking an area variance for the 1000 sq. ft. separation requirement from another existing gasoline station to build a gasoline station and convenience store. This is an Unlisted Action under SEQRA. Do I have a motion for a Negative Declaration? 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion for a Negative Dec.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Michael Maher: Yes

 

          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: Well it seems that the applicant has presented a plan to mitigate the necessary traffic issues that would be impacted which is the predominant reason why the Code indicates the 1000-feet to another gas station. They also submitted similar…a very similar situation with the Hess Station on Route 300 in which the same issue came up. I really don't see a big issue as long as they meet the requirements set forth in the traffic study by the traffic consultant. So I would probably want to put in any type of motion the recommendations of the traffic consultant as well as approval of the D.O.T. unless anybody else has another…

Mr. Hughes: There was a package plant in question too.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. I think that could be a possible recommendation to the Planning Board to take a close look at the…some of those issues that you raised Ron.

Mr. Hughes: The discharge for the MS4 regulations on that package plant.     

Ms. Eaton: I'll make a motion to approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No

                                  Michael Maher: Yes

 

          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: No

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  
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Chairperson Cardone: Has everyone had a chance to read the minutes from the January meeting? Do we have a motion to approve the minutes?

Ms Drake: So I'll make a motion to approve the minutes.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye - All (Except Mr. Manley who Abstained)

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

Mr. Manley: I abstain.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. Any other business?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I'd like our attorney write that letter to the other Board pertinent to the Public Hearings.

Chairperson Cardone: To the Town Board.

Mr. Donovan: Town Board.

Mr. Hughes: Town Board.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: For their attorney to review, to make recommendations to the Planning Board for a legislative action on changing that. This way here everyone that has a parcel whether its personal, residential or commercial has something to say with what goes on in confines of their neighborhood and their community.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: At this point, too often the law allows for the Planning Board to waive the Public Hearing and I think its unfair to the taxpayers.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anything else from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we adjourn?

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The meeting is adjourned until April 22nd.
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